
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
LOAN PORTFOLIO SERVICES 
FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON 
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Posted 12-04-2014 
 
City answers are in blue 
 
>>> Elizabeth Knight <liz@plmweb.com> 11/20/2014 10:35 AM >>> 
 
1. On what type of software system are the loans currently loaded?  We 

ask this question to verify that we can convert the data or whether it 
would be manual input. 

 
The information is currently maintained on a proprietary system, but 
data can be exported into Excel or other formats.    

 
2. When are you expecting to “transfer” servicing should you decide to 

move from your existing servicer? 
 

March, 2015.  
 
3. Is this being put out to bid simply because it is a government 

requirement or is there an issue with the existing servicer (we can 
understand if you are tentative to answer this question) 

 
An RFP is required in order to retain a qualified firm to handle loan 
portfolio services for the City of Stockton.  

 
4. How long have you been using your existing servicer? 
 

Since 2000.   
 
5. What percentage of loans are owner occupied? (percentage based 

on number of loans not dollars of loans).   
 

Approximately 73% of our loans are for owner-occupied residences. 
  
 
6. What percentage of loans are junior liens? (percentage based on 

number of loans not dollars of loans) 
 

We do not have this information available.   
 



7. What percentage of loans are consumer loans versus business 
purpose loans?  (percentage based on number of loans not dollars 
of loans).   

 
73% of our loans are for single-family, owner-occupied residences, 
16% are for multi-family properties (including some 2-4 unit 
properties), 6% are for commercial properties (façade loans and 
micro-business loans), and 5% are to non-profit organizations that 
provide public services to construct or rehabilitate their facilities.   

 
8. What percentage of loans are  multi-family (more than 4 units) / 

commercial property loans (versus 1-4 units) ((percentage based on 
number of loans not dollars of loans)? 
 
See answer to question 7. 

 
9. Were your borrowers “qualified” at time of loan origination? 
 

Yes.  
 
10. What is the standard delinquency ratio for the past 12 months? 

(percentage based on number of loans not dollars of loans) 
 

During fiscal year 2013/14, we had a delinquency rate of 
approximately three percent.  The delinquency rate is low because 
many of our loans are deferred with no monthly payments required.  

 
In addition, approximately one percent of our loans went through 
foreclosure or bankruptcy and another one percent of the properties 
that we had loans on were sold through a short-sale process.   

 
11. What is the thought process to commence foreclosure?  What types 

of procedures does the City look for before having the vendor 
commence foreclosure? 

 
During the past ten years, the City has not initiated the foreclosure 
process on a loan.  This is because our philosophy is to work with 
the borrowers and rewrite loan terms rather than foreclose.  It is also 
because in some instances our loans are not in first position.   

 
The process used prior to beginning a foreclosure would vary 
depending on the situation:  the process used when a homeowner is 
not in compliance with the owner-occupancy condition of their loan 
would be a different process than if a borrower cannot make 
payments due to a change in their employment.   

 



 
12. Is the pricing to include both loan servicing and the foreclosure 

action?  We have a document drawing company as well.  Did you 
want the pricing for loan docs, modifications with additional 
advance, etc.? 

 
Pricing is to include both loan servicing and foreclosure services, 
but it would be helpful if the costs were separated out.  Additional 
services, such as document preparation, can be noted in the 
proposal with separate costs for the additional services.   

 
13. In the “review” and monitor of the annual financial statements and 

basis for residual receipt payments submitted on multi-family loans, 
this is typically an accountant function.  Do you have a standard 
form which could be used or can you advise as to what precisely you 
are looking for?  What are the number of loan per year that this must 
be completed? 

 
We are looking for assistance in reviewing the financial statements 
submitted for the multi-family projects and determining whether the 
documents verify the residual receipt payments that are made, or not 
made, for the project.  Currently, approximately 32 projects require 
this type of review.   

 
14. In the monitoring of the bankruptcies and evaluate/recommend if 

action should be taken, do you have counsel of your choice or is it 
PLM’s choice of counsel. 

 
The City Attorney’s Office would be used.   

 
15. Are you firm that your vendor must show that they have serviced for 

three federal or state loan portfolios?  PLM services private investor 
loans.  We are given loans by loan brokers and funded by private 
investor funds, loans referred by title companies, loans referred by 
attorneys.  We take over portfolio from distressed servicing 
companies/brokers or when they simply want out of the servicing 
business.  We service loans for the City of Salinas and have for 
several years.  We have been Fannie Mae’s primary foreclosure 
trustee for the last 15 years on their multi-family units.  This, of 
course, is not servicing but goes towards the relationship factors.   
That is the extent of federal/state loan servicing.  We are extremely 
versatile due to our many brokers with whom we work.    

 
We would consider a vendor that has fewer than three references 
from government agencies as long as the vendor can demonstrate 
an understanding of the types of loans typically provided by local 



governments, the ability to work with our clientele, and can provide 
the services identified in the RFP.   

 
 
 
 
POSTED 11-13-14 
 
1.  Communication – please send your communication via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is November 20, 2014. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by December 4, 2014. 
 
4.  Bids due promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, December 11, 2014, City Clerk’s 

Office. 
 
 


